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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1t-ALEE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
“E-RE —E-pmF —EBE-=F - —ZT-—
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TET THAT FTHEL
Revenue from continuing and RBERDHRILAE
discontinued operations 15,904 47,543 132,421 332,610 247,530
Cost of sales and services HERRBRA (19,335) (52,918) (154,996) (352,713) (275,984)
Gross loss 8 (3,431) (5,375) (22,575) (20,103) (28,454)
Impairment losses under expected R IFFBEBIEER A EH
loss model, net of reversal BEBE NRER (1,264) (176) (544) 133 267
Other income, other gains and HiA - o deas
losses, net BRFE 7,614 (2,045) 7,511 6,080 8,833
Administrative expenses THRY (3,739) (4,810) (6,880) (9,898) (13,926)
Finance costs BE K (781) (507) (284) (88) (46)
Loss before taxation BB AER (1,601) (12,913) (22,772) (23,876) (33,326)
Taxation BB - - 208 (156) 1,464
Loss for the year FRER (1,601) (12,913) (22,544) (24,032) (31,862)
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+-H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
“E-REE  ZEZQWNE ZEZ=F ZZZZfF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THT THL AT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment W5 RFE 176 551 1,046 2,516
Right-of-use assets TREEE 80 240 992 1,086
256 791 2,038 3,602
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables, B o REMEWRIE
deposits and prepayments BeRBERNE 1,502 14,176 24,115 21,828
Contract assets BRAE 38,004 46,209 42,788 61,927
Restricted bank balances XREIRITET - - 15,719 15,618
Bank balances and cash ROIEFRAE 2,121 6,867 6,200 7,818
41,627 67,252 88,822 107,191
Assets classified as held for sale PEARELENEE - = = 478
41,627 67,252 88,822 107,669
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

As at 31 March

Current liabilities REBAE

Amount due to a shareholder B —2REZRE

Trade and other payables B REMENTE

Other short-term borrowing HipmBiER

Amounts due to a director of AT — R B 2 A&
a subsidiary —REERE

Provisions i

Contract liabilities BHEE

Lease liabilities HEAR

Tax payable FEATE

Net current (liabilities) assets #E(8E)EEFE

Total assets less current BEERRBEE
liabilities

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Lease liabilities HERE

Deferred tax liability EXHBER

Net (liabilities) assets (BB EEFHE

Capital and reserves EXR

Share capital B

(Deficits) reserves (B4 G

Total equity wER

R=ZA=t—-H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—E-RE —E-mE —E-=F —E-CE —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET FEL BT FEL
3,555 3,665 3,555 1,500
28,955 46,963 44,938 42,078
5,120 3,276 728 -
15,537 12,408 16,058 17,000
2,572 2,572 2,572 2,572
- - - 1,115
- 125 811 654
45 45 293 -
51,334 55,784 68,944 68,955 64,919
(15,537) (14,157) (1,692) 19,867 42,750
(15,537) (13,901) (901) 21,905 46,352
- - 124 405
- - - 180
- - 124 585
(15,537) (13,901) (901) 21,781 45,767
8,048 8,048 8,048 8,048 8,048
(23,585) (21,949 (8,949 13,733 37,719
(15,537) (13,901) (901) 21,781 45,767
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW
Construction and site formation services

The Group has over 22 years of experience in providing site formation works as a
subcontractor in Hong Kong (“Construction Segment”). The site formation works
undertaken by the Group generally include (a) general earthworks (including soil
and rock excavation, disposal of construction and demolition materials, backfiling
and compaction for forming a new site or achieving designed formation level for
later development); (b) tunnel excavation works (including rock excavation works for
construction of tunnels through drill and break and/or drill and blast methods as well
as construction of associated temporary tunnel support structures); (c) foundation
works (including excavation and lateral support works (the “ELS”) and associated
structural works for construction of pile caps for commercial and residential building
projects); and (d) road and drainage works.

As at 31 March 2025, there was 1 (2024: 2) project on hand with total contract
sum amounting to approximately HK$310.0 million (2024: approximately HK$323.6
million). The project was substantially completed. For the year ended 31 March
2025 (the “Reporting Period”), there was 1 (2024: 2) project of contract sum
amounting to approximately HK$13.6 million (2024: approximately HK$114.1 million)
completed and contributed a turnover of approximately HK$3.1 million (2024:
approximately HK$18.4 million) to the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not awarded any project (2024: 1,
Kwai Tsing District, contract sum of approximately HK$1.0 million). As at 31 March
2025, the project together with related variation orders on hand are in progress
and approximately HK$12.8 million has been recognised as revenue up to 31
March 2025 while approximately HK$0.9 million of the revenue was generated from
previous completed projects.

Set out below is a list of projects completed during the Reporting Period and those
projects which are still in progress at 31 March 2025:

E¥omE
BERMBYIRETIRERE

AEBERSBERESREMBTRIR ([EE
DEIEEBRFER - NEBAKAMRFET
B—Reif@—RtarT IR (FLEREAER
Tﬁ@%ﬂ&’iﬁ RIK — A AR RERER
R BBKFNELIREER)  ORBEZETR (2
%Lﬂ%%?t&ﬁ&@&/?i%ﬂ&iﬂ%ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁiL
AR ERBRSEREREEBNENEZERETE) : (0
WETR(EERAAEREEETRAZEBENE
BRAMAETRE (R RARAETIZ]) RiEFH
RBEIE)  ROEEIRB IR

R-E-_RE=-ZA=+—A A£EFEAH1EHEE
(ZZT =4 2M@) - 85 #) & R4 A310,000,0007%
7T (ZZ P4 : 49323,600,000/ 7T) < :Z BB B A
BRI -B#E-_Z-_AF=-A=+—ALFE([H
EHIR ) A# L4 513,600,000 7T (ZZF =M
1 #9114,100,000% L) W1EABE (Z T ZMF:2
&) B % T - AN B R R & ¥ 543,100,000/ T
(== /Y4 : #18,400,000/% 7T ) °

REFEHRE REEY EEETAER (DT Mg
1EER  ZFE A4S T A1,000,000%7T) < R
—E-RFZAZ=Z+—A FEMNIEEE RABE
IMTIEERFEITH MEE-_T-_RAF=-A=+—8"
#912,800,0008 T E R AKE ML E T IAIEAE
B Bl 4 49900,0007% JT 4k 5

TERHBIRREHPHNERTIBEBE RN =_ZT-AF
—A=+—HMEZERBE:

Site Location Type of Work Status Contract Sum

iRy B IR R AHEE
(HKS Million)
(BB#ET)

Kwun Tong District Site formation works In progress 310.0

BiERE AR ETIZ 2

Shatin District Blasting and tunnel works Completed 13.6

W H R R R B E T A2 BRI

Trading of Liquefied Natural Gas (“LNG”) RILXARRE S

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group discontinued its trading of LNG
business in the People’s Republic of China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prospects

The Company confirms that its business operations continue to rest on a solid
foundation, despite prevailing market conditions. The Group is navigating the
current slowdown in Hong Kong'’s construction sector, which has been impacted
by a sluggish economy and weakened real estate market. The market dynamics
have resulted in fewer available private-sector construction projects and intensified
competition, prompting more aggressive bidding strategies among participants.
The Company acknowledges that its historical emphasis on site formation,
tunnelling, and blasting works has limited its ability to fully capitalize on certain
emerging market opportunities, particularly those arising from new development
initiatives such as the Northern Metropolis. To address this competitive market
environment, the Company has proactively implemented a strategic realignment
aimed at broadening its operational scope to include redevelopment, renewal, and
refurbishment projects, thereby enhancing the Company’s market competitiveness
and positioning.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$15.9 million for the Reporting
Period, representing a decrease of approximately HK$31.6 million or 66.6%
compared with approximately HK$47.5 million for the corresponding period in 2024.
Keen competition and high materials price caused the number of projects awarded
dropped substantially.

The Group ceased operating the Trading Segment during the last reporting period.

Gross loss

The Group’s total gross loss amounted to approximately HK$3.4 million for the
Reporting Period, a decrease of approximately HK$2.0 million or 36.2% compared
with approximately HK$5.4 million for the corresponding period in 2024.

Other income, other gain and losses, net

The net other income, other gain and losses of the Group for the Reporting Period
amounted to a gain of approximately HK$7.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$4.3 million or 128.2% compared with approximately HK$3.3
million for the corresponding period of 2024. The gain was mainly contributed by
the written off on other payables of approximately HK$4.0 million and the reversal of
provision of approximately HK$2.6 million during the Reporting Period.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Reporting Period amounted to
approximately HK$3.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.1
million or 22.3% compared with approximately HK$4.8 million for the corresponding
period of 2024. The decrease was mainly attributable to a significant reduction of
depreciation charges and staff cost in the Reporting Period.

FQ£§FE*THMZi *ﬁ

EVE

B =

AEER BEEAMBERATE BRREKE
@1)3%4‘%. REBEANEHETISRBENTE
AEEBFSNEHESEEEBNIARRENS
S ﬁ%@ﬁégﬁﬂlﬁtﬁdﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁEﬁé\&n
FmE REL2EEHADNEBEBABRERE -AAQ
AR EBREEGHTE. &LMI%EJ@E&I&E’\JE
RRHTHEDFARETEMSEENE S LH
%ﬁﬁ‘tb)@E%ﬁﬁﬁ?‘E’ﬂE% Blan it FBEBE - & FE L R

FHZHTHBIRE ARREEGERREMEAE
EERAHERGEGE BREEE EMMNBFEE -
MG AR RE ISR E N ENL -

Bt %5 B B8
Wy &

PR E B - A& B 815 W & 49 /15,900,000 7T
—ZE YT 447,500,000 T)  REER DL
31,600,0007% 7T 566.6% ° I XL &) % 5 A i & KM £
ERERRIZEE SRR %

AEEREFREDHRLILE
E8

RBMEWHE AL B2 TEA L A3,400,000%8
7T (ZZ Z U4 : 495,400,000/ 70) * B EF R L 4
2,000,000/ 7T 336.2% °

HttlA -t Em RBRFE

RIEHME - AEE 2 HMBA - EakzsREE
SR EE A A7,600,0008 T BT - FEREH
3,300,000 7T & /i #14,300,0007% 7T 5128.2% ° 1A £
2 R - H fth B A BXE 88 494,000,000 7T & B
6] 492,600,000 70+ B B Bz 1 -

TTERAX

AEER RS M ATTER X 49/83,700,0007 7T * &

— = — P4 [F) H3 494,800,0005% 7T 3R 4 #91,100,000
HIL22.3% c WH A EZHRITEMRET KB TRA
BER DT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWE D

Loss for the year

The loss of the Group for the Reporting Period recorded approximately HK$1.6
million, as compared to approximately HK$12.9 million for the corresponding period
in 2024. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in the gross loss,
the increase in other gains and no loss from the discontinued operation during the
Reporting Period.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Resources

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had bank balances of approximately HK$1.5
million (2024: approximately HK$2.1 million). As at 31 March 2025, the amount of
total interest-bearing borrowing of the Group was approximately HK$8.9 million
(2024: approximately HK$5.1 million).

The gearing ratio is calculated based on the amount of total interest-bearing debts
divided by total equity. As at 31 March 2025, the gearing ratios of the Group were
(0.57) (2024: (0.37)).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

There was no material charge on the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2025 and
2024.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and most of the operating transactions
such as revenue, expenses, monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The Directors are of the view that the Group’s risk in foreign
exchange is insignificant and that the Group should have sufficient resources to
meet foreign exchange requirements as and if they arise. Therefore, the Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, management of
the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2025, the Group employed 33 staff (2024: 118 staff). On average,
the Group employed 76 staff during the year (2024: 134 staff). Total staff costs not
including directors’ emoluments for the year, amounted to approximately HK$12.7
million (2024: approximately HK$33.2 million). The salary and benefit levels of the
employees of the Group are competitive and individual performance is rewarded
through the Group’s salary and bonus system. The Group conducts annual
review on salary increase, discretionary bonuses and promotions based on the
performance of each employee.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not experienced any significant

problems with its employees due to labour disputes nor has it experienced any
difficulty in the recruitment and retention of experienced staff.

Century Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Reporting Period, there has been no change in capital structure
of the Company. The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and
capital reserves. As at 31 March 2025, the Company'’s issued share capital was
approximately HK$8.0 million (2024: approximately HK$8.0 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hold any significant investments nor
have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
or joint ventures.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by business segments is
set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements of this report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any capital commitments (2024: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
(2024: Nil).

EEENWE D

BERERE

RBEHE ARREAREREEZS  AARER
BEEBRREREAFE R_T-_RAF=A=+—8"
AN EE BT 48,000,000/ 7T ( ZF —PO4F : 4
8,000,000/ 7T ) °

EXARE-EAWBREE

RS AR E D REABARE T EAE
AR L EEAT BEARRA AT
7 EER
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AR MET -

BAEE

R-BZRF=ZA=+—R AEEILEEFERE
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RBEBE(ZE-WME:M|)o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Man Wai Lun (“Mr. Man”), aged 52, obtained his diploma in
Business Management from the School of Continuing Education, Hong
Kong Baptist University in 2003 and obtained a bachelor degree of
accountancy from the University of South Australia in 2007. Mr. Man has
over 17 years of experience in accounting.

Mr. Man is currently an executive director of King International Investment
Limited (Stock Code: 928), the shares of which are listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. Man was previously an executive director of China Clean Energy
Technology Group Limited (stock code: 2379) until 3 October 2022, an
independent non-executive director of Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 907) until 8 February 2024, of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1152) until 29 April 2024 and of
Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8147) until 28
May 2024. The above companies are all listed companies in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (“Mr. Law”), aged 64, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 14 May 2020. He
is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and members of audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Law is currently an executive director of Zhejiang United Investment
Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8366), an independent non-
executive director of Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code:
887) and of Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
907). The above companies are all listed companies in Hong Kong.

He is a Chartered Quantity Surveyor of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Law has more than thirty years’ experience in construction and
property development. In the past, he took up some key management
positions with major Hong Kong property developers and has held
corporate management role in logistic facilities development companies.
He acted as a Vice President in K11 Concepts Limited from 2017 to
2019. He acted as a Project Director in Kerry Properties China Limited
from 2012 to 2017.

Century Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2025
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Man Lai (“Mr. Chung”), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and the member of audit committee
and remuneration committee, and chairman of nomination committee of
the Company with effect from 23 December 2019. He has over 24 years
of experience in auditing and accounting.

Prior to joining of the Group, Mr. Chung worked in a reputable
international accounting firm and was the chief financial officers of CMIC
Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 206) (Z i [ B /& )+ 6 R
BHE IR AR 2 8)) and IDT International Limited (Stock code: 167) (&
¥ B[R A 7)), both are companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chung is currently an independent non-executive director of Roma
(Meta) Group Limited (Stock code: 8072) and an executive director of
CBK Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8428) since 29 August 2024, both are
companies listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chung was previously an executive director of Wuxi Life International
Holdings Group Limited (Stock code: 8148) since 15 September 2020
and until 29 November 20283, and a non-executive director of Century
Plaza Hotel Group (formerly known as Greatwalle Inc.) (stock code: 8315)
until 27 June 2024, both are companies listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1998 and a master of
business administration degree with a major in international business from
EU Business School in December 2018. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

EEBEEFE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEEFE

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria (“Ms. Lam”), aged 55, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company since October 2021.
She is also the chairman and a member of the audit committee, and
members of remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company.

Ms. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of Wuxi
Life International Holdings Group Limited (Stock code: 8148) and of
Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group Limited (Stock code: 8366)
since 31 December 2024, both are companies listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, and a non-executive director of PanAsialum Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 2078), the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, since 1 July 2024. She is also
a company secretary and an authorised representative of a Hong Kong
listed company.

Ms. Lam was previously an independent non-executive director of China
Come Ride New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 8039), the shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, until 9 January 2024.

Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master degree in Management from the
Macquarie University and a master degree in Applied Psychology from
City University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute, the Chartered Governance Institute and
the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. She is also an accredited mediator
of the Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation Association Limited, a member
and a qualified graphologist of the British Institute of Graphologists and a
member of Scientific Association of Forensic Examiners.

Prior to joining the Board, Ms. Lam has worked with an international
accounting firm and other leading listed and private group of companies
and has extensive experience in company secretarial practice, assurance,
treasury and finance. She is currently providing management consultancy
and corporate secretarial services, graphology consultancy and training
services and forensic handwriting examination.

*

For identification only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Century Group International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recognise the importance of
achieving the highest standard of corporate governance consistent with
the needs and requirements of its businesses and the best interest of
all of its stakeholders, and the board (the “Board”) of directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) is fully committed to maintaining and promoting
stringent corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures, uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity
in all aspects of business, to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and to enhance the
transparency and accountability of the Board to shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value and formulate its
business strategies and policies.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as the
code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company (the “Shares”)
by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiries
made by the Company that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March
2025 (the “Reporting Period”). To ensure Directors’ dealings in the Shares
are conducted in accordance with the Model Code and securities code of
the Company (the “Securities Dealing Code”), Director is required to notify
the Chairman in writing and obtain a written acknowledgement from the
Chairman prior to any dealings in the Shares.

The Securities Dealing Code also applies to all relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code
by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance
principles on the Group, with reference to the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the CG Code during the Reporting Period and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of the
CG Code, except the CG Code provisions C.2.1 with considered reasons
explained below.

Under the CG Code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. There is no separation between the roles of the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the
Company (“CEQ”). Although the responsibilities of the Chairman and CEO
are vested in one person, all major decisions are made in consultation
with the Board members and the senior management of the Company.
The Board considers that there is sufficient balance of power and the
current arrangement maintains a strong management position of the
Company. Subsequent to the resignation of the Chairman as a member
of the Board during the Reporting Period, there was no Chairman in the
Company.

The Board will continue to regularly review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code, and
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management and
performances. The management team is delegated with the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include (1) the preparation of interim and annual
reports and announcements for the Board’s approval before publishing;
(2) implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and (3) compliance with relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of
the Board to determine the appropriate corporate governance practices
applicable to the Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and
procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.
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The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. Directors with various
professional qualifications experience and related financial management
expertise have contributed to the effective direction of the Company and
provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
both the Group and the shareholders. Hence, the Board believes that
the current Board composition satisfy with the corporate governance
requirements of the Group with regard to the balance of expertise, skills
and experience as well as the ongoing development and management of
its business activities.

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values and strategy, and
has satisfied itself that the Group’s culture is aligned. Acting with integrity
and leading by example, the Directors promote the desired culture to instill
and continually reinforce across the Group the values of acting lawfully,
ethically and responsibly. The Group has adopted anti-corruption and
whistleblowing policy to provide forums for reporting issues and concerns
on any misconduct, and to uphold business integrity in its operations.

The Group is committed to seeking progress while maintaining stability
and strives to improve operational efficiency and strengthen the
risk control measures. Effective risk control will remain as the core
competitiveness and investment highlight of the Group, while the Group
will strive to extend its business to explore business opportunities. A
healthy corporate culture is important to good corporate governance,
which is crucial for achieving sustainable long-term success of the Group.

Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board consists of four Directors,
which comprises one executive Director (“ED”) and three independent
non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”). The composition of the Board during
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report was as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Feng (Chairman)

(resigned with effect from 16 August 2024)
Mr. Man Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Man Lai

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria
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There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors. The biographies of the Directors are
set out in “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 10 to 12 of this
annual report.

The Board includes a balanced composition of ED and INEDs so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of the Company
and that the current board size is adequate for its present operations.
Each Director keeps abreast of his responsibility as the Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking
into account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in the
agenda while the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group’s business.

The Chairman was Mr. Wang Feng. Subsequent to the resignation of
the Chairman as a member of the Board during the Reporting Period,
there was no Chairman in the Company. The Board is still looking for any
suitable candidates to fill in the vacancy of the CEO. Upon the period of
change in senior management of the Company, the role of CEO keeps
vacant and the duties will be borne by Mr. Man Wai Lun, the ED. It
breaches with the principles and the code provisions set out in the CG
Code in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. There is no separation between the roles of the Chairman and
the CEO. Notwithstanding the deviation from code provision C.2.1, all
major decisions are made in consultation with the Board members and
the senior management of the Company. The Board believes that with
the support of the management, vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer by the same person can facilitate execution of the
Group’s business strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. In
addition, under the supervision by the Board which currently consists
of two EDs and three INEDs, here is sufficient balance of power and
the current arrangement maintains a strong management position of
the Company. The interest of the shareholders of the Company will be
adequately and fairly represented.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The CG Code provision C.1.6 requires that INED should, among others,
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. There is satisfactory attendance at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meeting during the
Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had three INEDs in which
at least one of them has appropriate professional accounting or related
financial management expertise in compliance with rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of their independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all the INEDs are independent in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has put in place mechanism to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. This is achieved by giving directors
access to external independent professional advice from legal advisers
and auditor, as well as the full attendance of all INED at all the meetings of
the Board and its relevant committees held during the Reporting Period.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
aforementioned mechanisms on an annual basis.

Terms of Directors and Re-election of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code states that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years while the Listing Rules states
that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after
appointment.

Each of the ED has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then
current term. Each of the INED has entered into an appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years, subject to renewal after the
expiry of the then current term.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, at every annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall not be taken into account in determining which Directors are to retire
by rotation. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election thereat.
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The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold
office only until the following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Responsibilities and Accountabilities of the
Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, and
is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including INED, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning.

The INED are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for
bringing effective independent judgment on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors have been updated on the latest developments regarding
the statutory and regulatory requirements and also the business and
market changes to facilitate the performance of their responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements,
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

All Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for the Directors would be arranged and reading
materials on changes and developments to the Group’s business and
to the legislative and regulatory environments relating to the market and
the operations of the Group would be provided to the Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses. All the Directors named in the
section headed “Board Composition” in this Corporate Governance
Report confirmed that they have complied with the code provision C.1.4
of the CG Code on Directors’ continuous professional development
during the Reporting Period by participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities, and reading materials relating to
regulatory updates and handouts or reviewing the papers and circulars
sent by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for setting
directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and managing
the risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently three
committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the
management. Each of the Committees is established with defined written
terms of reference which are available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor, evaluating the overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems, reviewing the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and other financial reporting matters and ensuring
the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statements,
monitoring compliance with statutory and listing requirements and
overseeing the relationship with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. At least one member has an appropriate
professional qualification or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance
with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements
during the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, EDs and senior executives
are invited to attend the meetings, if required. Each of the Audit
Committee members has unrestricted access to the Group’s external
auditor and the management.

The Audit Committee supervises internal investigation and reviewing
the anti-corruption policy and system and the whistleblowing policy
and systems and other arrangements for employees of the Company to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matters related to the
Company.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria, Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming and Mr. Chung Man
Lai. Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least twice a year. Two
meetings were held during the Reporting Period. The attendance of each
member is set out as follows:

TEEBRSE

EREREQHAEERIBITRREHE -G
HABRITMAGH - SEREZHEBRET
LI

Attendance/eligible to attend

HEREEERLERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUYKHITES
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria (Chairman) 2/2
MR+ (/)
Mr. Chung Man Lai 2/2
EXEBELE
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming 2/2
BRASLE

Summary of works

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
reporting matters including the interim and annual results, made
recommendations to the Board on the terms of engagement and re-
appointment of the external auditor, and reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems, and its
other duties in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written terms of
reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG
Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the Group’s
preliminary interim results and annual financial statements and to monitor
the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, to review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, internal audit matters and to review the financial and
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the terms of remuneration package payable to
Directors and senior management and on the Company’s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management.

The model of the Remuneration Committee described in code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code has been adopted by the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the prevailing market conditions, individual
experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company
and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the Group’s
affairs. The amounts paid to each Director for the Reporting Period are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria
and Mr. Chung Man Lai. Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
One meeting was held during the Reporting Period. The attendance of
each member is set out as follows:

¥ B B R

EX2HFMIEFHEEEERTHBER @A
ARE BENMEEREZ

EZFMERARAREMBRARREEAR
SEEEMRAERFELHZNK - RERARE
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EEEN - KEDRRERPELE MHER
ThEXRAL - BRALERFMEESE
o

FHZE B BFRIBIT-REH -FH
ZEERHERART -REH-FKEZH
EBREIN T :

Attendance/eligible to attend

HERE EEEHERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIUFHITES
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (Chairman) 1/1
BERALE(EE)
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 1/1
MPESE &+
Mr. Chung Man Lai 1/1
EXBEE

Summary of works

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of all
the Directors, reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the proposed Directors in accordance with the
Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

No material matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of

the Listing Rules were required to be reviewed or approved by the
Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Period.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things,
assisting the Board by developing and formulating relevant procedures
in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the structure, size
and composition, and the diversity of the Board at least annually with
due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the corporate strategy of the Company; identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board having due regard to the
Board Diversity Policy; assessing the independence of INEDs; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors; as well as to review
the Board Diversity Policy and the Board Nomination Policy (as defined
below), as appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Chung Man Lai, Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming and
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria. Mr. Chung Man Lai is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
In addition, the Nomination Committee also meets as it is required to
consider nomination related matters. One meeting was held during the
Reporting Period. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

TEEBRSE
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Attendance/eligible to attend

HERE EERHERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Chung Man Lai (Chairman) 11
EXABEAE (FE)
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming 11
BHRASLE
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 11
MBI+

Summary of works

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board in light of the Board
Diversity Policy, assessed the independence of INEDs, reviewed and
made recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-election of the
retiring Directors, reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy, and reviewed the appointment of the nominated Directors and
made recommendation to the Board for approval in accordance with the
Nomination Committee’s written terms of reference.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a Nomination Policy regarding the nomination,
appointment, re-appointment of Directors and the nomination procedure
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will select candidate for directorship based
on his/her character, integrity, professorial qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience, independence, diversity of the Board, willingness to
devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such
other criteria that are appropriate for the business and corporate strategy
of the Company.

For appointment of new Director, the Nomination Committee evaluates
such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. For those qualified
candidates, recommendations are made to the Board. For re-election
of the retiring director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
review the overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and the level of participation and performance on the Board and
determine whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria
as set out above. Recommendations are then made to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the general meeting.

The shareholders of the Company may propose a person for election as
a Director in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
and applicable law.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy regularly or
at any time necessary.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a Board Diversity Policy in April 2016. A summary of
this policy, together with the measurable objectives set for implementing
this policy, and the progress made towards achieving those objectives are
disclosed as below.

The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
numbers of measurable aspects including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered with the
objective criteria, having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three INEDs, and thereby to promote critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterised by significant
diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length of services,
professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
Board Diversity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Securities Dealing Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code states that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of a majority of Directors, either in
person or through other electronic means of communication.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. There were two Board meetings held during
the Reporting Period.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the
Reporting Period were set out as follows:

BRAESHEREPRNEBTZESTTTER
MEFN AT

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
EREERE ERETRHY

Annual
Name of Director Board Meeting General Meeting
EEnR EEEER BRREFEKRE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Wang Feng (resigned with effect from 16 August 2024) 1/2 0/1
THEE(BZE-_MENA+BHEHT)
Mr. Man Wai Lun 4/4 11
XIEBE A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIYFHITES
Mr. Chung Man Lai 3/3 11
BN ST A
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming 3/3 0/1
ERALAE
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria 3/3 11
MRS A+
DIVIDEND POLICY IR B BR

The Company pursues a continuity-based dividend policy (“Dividend
Policy”) which aims to allow the shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board should take into account, inter alias, the Company’s
operating results, actual and expected financial performance, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and members of
the Group, the Group’s debt to equity ratios, liquidity position, the Group
expected working capital requirements and future expansion plans, any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lender, general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and
relevant.

The Board will review, modify and/or update the Dividend Policy at any
time as it deems fits and necessary.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established (i) policy and measures that promote and
support anti-corruption laws and regulations; and (ii) whistleblowing policy
and measures for employees, suppliers and business partners to raise
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.
Such system is to safeguard of the interest of shareholders and the
Group’s assets.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. It has been an important duty
of the Board to conduct a review of internal control to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the system of the Group annually or at
any time necessary. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and training
program and budget. The process use to review its effectiveness includes
identification, evaluation, management measures and control and review.

Internal Control

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted an annual review of the overall effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group over financial, operational and compliance
issues, risk management process, information systems security, scope
and quality of the management’s monitoring of risks and the effectiveness
of financial reporting and compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board
considered that the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget were adequate. The Board concluded that in
general, the Group had set up a sound control environment and installed
necessary control mechanisms to monitor and correct non-compliance.
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Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely, accurate
and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information about the
Group. The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of Inside
Information in respect of procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to
rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provision under
Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. With those guidelines
and procedures, the Group has management controls in place to ensure
that potential inside information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide about the need for
disclosure.

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Group is
strictly controlled and remains confidential including but not limited by the
following ways:

1. Restrict access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

2. Reminder to employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

3 Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place when
the Group enters into significant negotiations or dealings with third
party;

4. Inside information is handled and communicated by designated

persons to outside third party; and

5} The Board and the senior management review the safety measures
regularly to ensure inside information is properly handled and
disseminated.

Related Party Transactions

During the Reporting Period, the related party transactions, if any, are
periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Century Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2025

ABHEE

RRARB N EBBIT R EER TR
WEALEBEZERNEE -ARGERELTR
BIZ513.006 A K 78 % & B & 1& Bl EXIVAES 2
NEHEBRYEMEEEERERERAE
HENHBRFEADERORNEEEER
B -EZEEIIREBFZET ALED
RAEEIBE I R ATENR R AR IR
BEANBHEEUMHEETEATREREEIFL
HEE o

FEBEZ (BEETERMN AT EERE
EARBBZEERERULERATHES
REFHE -

1. BRAIRBIBEBEEEHTEEHEMRT
AEHE

Jim

2. REFEEAREEZEEEEMTHE
REE ML

3. AEEEF-JNETEAERXRZE
HEEOR 1 7T A& 28 HO R 25 16 2k

4. HETABREARBHERERAIINAE=
TER R

5, HEGLSREEETHRNLZEER
NHERABESSUNZERERE W -

BELTRS

RBEHPA BERZESTHERNRILERE
TR (WE)-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial statements for
the Reporting Period, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set
out in the section “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the
audit fee. The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-audit
service (including professional advice on taxation) for the Reporting Period
provided by OOP CPA & Co. was HK$375,000 and nil respectively.

Services rendered
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Fee paid/payable

P iR 1 AR 75 e EFER

HK$ 000
FET

Audit services

EZRB 365,000

Non-audit services

IEFZ R -

Total

#Et 365,000

COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary EE - ZERREARWMEARIFHEESIEHN

is subject to approval by the Board in accordance with the Articles of
Association and CG Code. Mr. Lee Cheuk Man (“Mr. Lee”) has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Company with effect from 28
May 2021.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Lee has undertaken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board is
committed to provide clear and detailed information of the Group to
its shareholders in a timely manner and on a regular basis, through the
publication of interim and annual reports and/or dispatching circulars,
notices, and other announcements.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The Chairman
of the Board and other members of the respective committees are
available to answer questions of the shareholders at the general meeting.
The Company recognises the importance of maintaining on-going
communications with the shareholders and encourages them to attend
general meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and convey
any concerns they may have to the Directors and senior management.

At the AGM held on 16 August 2024, separate resolutions were proposed
by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including re-election
of directors, re-election of auditor etc., and voted by way of poll. The
Company announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed
under the Listing Rules. ED and INED, including the respective chairman
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee, and members
of the Remuneration Committee had attended the AGM held in 2024 to
ensure effective communication with the shareholders.

The Company maintain a website at http://www.centurygroup.com.hk
where extensive information and updates on the Company'’s financial
information, corporate governance practices and other useful information
are posted and available for access by the public investors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and to put forward
proposal at general meetings

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more members holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Article 85 of the articles of association of the Company provides that no
person other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the
Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office or
at the registration office. The period for lodgment of the notices required
under this Article will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least 7 days. The written notice must state that
person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules. The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as director is posted on the Company’s website.

Shareholders’ enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04,
33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong, or call its customer service hotline at (852) 2849 3399.

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the AGM of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: info2113.cg@gmail.com). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has published its memorandum of association and the
Articles on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the Reporting Period, no amendments were made to
the constitutional documents of the Company.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Century Group International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is principally engaged in provision of site
formation works in Hong Kong. The operation of trading of liquefied
natural gas in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) discontinued
during the year ended 31 March 2024. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended
31 March 2025 (the “Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period, a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and description of
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided
in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Report of Directors
sections on pages 6 to 43 of this annual report. Also, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in note
6 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the Reporting Period using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis section
on pages 6 to 9 of this annual report. In addition, discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies and performance, relationships with its key
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group are set out below.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it engages. The Group strives to minimise its
impact on the environment by reducing its use of electricity and water and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group has
complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Environmental, social and governance report will be published to
respective websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in the manner as required by
Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in due course.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best of the knowledge of the directors of the Company (the
“Director(s)”), information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group during the Reporting Period.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group is not aware of any key relationships between itself and its
employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a significant impact
on the Company and on which the Company’s success depends.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 49 of this report. No dividend was paid or proposed by the
Company during the year, nor has any dividend been proposed by the
Directors since the end of the year.

CLOSING OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 11
August 2025 to Friday, 15 August 2025, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) will be effected. In
order to qualify for attendance of the annual general meeting (“AGM”), all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong Share
Registrar, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 8 August 2025.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
Reporting Period (2024: Nil).

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operation, business and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group:

The amount of revenue derived from a project may
be higher or lower than the original contract sum
due to factors such as variation orders

The aggregate amount of revenue derived from a project may be different
from the original contract sum specified in the relevant contract for the
project due to factors such as variation orders (including additions,
reductions and/or other changes in the scope of the works) placed by
customers from time to time during the course of project execution. As
such, there is no assurance that revenue from projects on hand will not
be substantially lower than the original contract sum as specified in the
relevant contracts and hence, the Group’s profitability will be adversely
affected.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

HES - FF -HEBREMALH
TERB

AEEYIANEEASEHER TF HER
REMALTEERAHARRAAEAFEALR
REVEAR R ERBAR -

REk 7k

AEERBEHENEEHN ARE L4980
ZEAEBREREMEEKER RAFE K
AALE|EONHBZRNEE  KAFREE
ENEZZRMNEMBRE -

EENERNVBFESFRE

ARAER-_ZE-_AFNA+—B(EH—)
E-Z-HAENA+HB(EHH) (BEE
EMmA)EEREREEZLFE HEHETE
WMEBEMAQGRD ([KRH])BFEERL A
HeLERRBFAS ([REBEFAE])H
Bi% - FTBEZZRMNBPRSERBHARE
SENBER-_ZTE-_AFNANB(EHA)T
FHE =19 28 KEARE 2 BERD B
FELRBAZBLELERAR It AEHS
it /A 5 2383385 =R 5 [ 5 2H133123301 -

04% -

RKERE

EEVERENREABRENRBBRE (=2
—PYF ) o

TERBRETHBER

REBBBMRR KEXKE XHRATR AL
XETRBRETAPERZE - ATE#HIIAE
BRI ETERR M AHARE:

BREBEAzWSESHAIEEET
HE (MBEES)SRIABRES
WEHE

BEAEAZWEABAERE THERZRER
BHBAAMIARANESRFEESR WA
BRTRARTEFPTHEERS (BFEEM-
MoK/ SHEMEETTIREGE) o @bt &
REBFEBEBZUETEEERBHEAN
AANRAMNSE WAKEANENKZE
THEE-

HLEEEERZERERAR | —E-_AFFH

33



34

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Keen competition

Due to slowdown of Hong Kong economy, the competition of construction
industry has become more intense as there will be a foreseeable reduction
of number of construction projects available for our tendering. To increase
the chance of success in winning the tender bidding, the Group will lower
its profit margin, which will affect its profit for the coming year.

Error or inaccurate estimation of project duration
and costs when determining the tender price may
result in substantial loss incurred

Construction contracts and in particular public projects are normally
awarded through a competitive tendering process. The Group determines
a tender price by estimating the construction costs under the contract
duration as specified in the tender invitation documents. There is no
assurance that tenders submitted by the Group contain no mistake
and error. Such mistakes and errors may be in the form of inaccurate
estimation, oversight of important tender terms, inadvertent typographical
errors, errors in calculations, etc. In case of contracts awarded to the
Group with mistakes or errors in the submitted tender, the Group may be
bound by the contract to undertake the project at a substantial loss.

Inaccurate estimation on project schedule, project costs and technical
difficulties in the tendering process may result in cost overruns when the
Group actually executes the awarded project. Many factors affect the time
taken and the costs actually involved in completing construction projects
undertaken by the Group. Examples of such factors include shortage and
cost escalation of labour and materials, difficult geological conditions,
adverse weather conditions, variations to the construction plans instructed
by customers, stringent technical construction requirements, threatened
claims and material disputes with main contractors, subcontractors and
suppliers, accidents, and changes in the Government’s policies. Other
unforeseen problems or circumstances may also occur during project
implementation. If any of such factors arises and remains unresolved,
completion of construction works may be delayed or the Group may
be subject to cost overruns or our customers may even be entitled to
terminate the contract unilaterally.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Company and
the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Reporting Period in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during the
Reporting Period. (2024: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 March 2025, the Company has reserves available of
approximately HK$24.87 million (2024: approximately HK$27.92 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Feng (Chairman)

(resigned with effect from 16 August 2024)
Mr. Man Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Man Lai

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria

By virtue of articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Man Wai Lun and Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” in this report.

Information regarding Directors’ emoluments is set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules has been received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors (“INED(s)”) and the Company considers all the INEDs
to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for fixed terms.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the forthcoming
AGM, has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s articles and association provides that the Directors shall
be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
said persons.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to our Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which the Director or an entity connected the Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time
during the Reporting Period.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries or any contracts of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by any controlling shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of our Group are set out in note 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee of the Company will review and determine
the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, time devoted to our Group
and the performance of our Group. The Directors may also receive
options to be granted under the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme” or the “Scheme”).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors confirm that none of the controlling shareholders or the
Directors and their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is interested in any business apart from the business operated by
our Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,
with our Group’s business during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2025, no Directors and chief executive of the Company
had interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of the associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which fell to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, have been entered in the
register referred to therein, or have been, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules, notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
interest or short position in Shares or underlying Shares which fell to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or would be, directly or indirectly,
be interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company,
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRREMATRRG RAEEB
RONERRXR

RZE-_RAF=ZA=+—8 BEZ=/M&"T
WAL (WHEARAEZTHEZTHRAB)R
B s ABRE IR (D P A RIRE F K B E 5 H
EXVEPE2R37 BRI R LB M A A A &R
FIEBENERIAE B EESBERERR
AI5%IA FEBITRAPEE LR AL
RARRIRIEFE SR E KA E3361&EETF
mELMAmERSAR

Number of
Name of Shares held/ Percentage
substantial shareholder Capacity/Nature interested of interest
P ¥ IR 40
REEH B/ HE A #Ex EHZASL
Chow Hon Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 225,330,000 (L) 28%
2An R AERER (MF2) (Note 1) (Pft7E1)
Wang Feng Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 225,330,000 (L) 28%
& ZEAE R (MEE3) (Note 1) (FzE1)
D’ Legem Group Limited Beneficial owner 225,330,000 (L) 28%

RHNEEBRAA EmEE A (Note 1) (FFE1)

Notes: Bt

1. The letter “L” demonstrates long position in such securities. 1. EXFHILEREEZESFPEENGTE -

2. The Shares are held by D’ Legem Group Limited. Mr. Chow Hon beneficially 2. BOBRNEBERARIFTE - BMEER

owns 98% of the issued shares of D’ Legem Group Limited.

&k The Shares are held by D’ Legem Group Limited. Mr. Wang Feng beneficially
owns 2% of the issued shares of D’ Legem Group Limited.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during the Reporting
Period were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its parent company, or its parent
company’s subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the Reporting
Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Reporting Period, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for 10.4% and 44.0% respectively of the Group’s total
purchases for the year. Revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
74.6% and 100.0% respectively of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any material beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities was
made during the Reporting Period.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by our Group, or existed during the
Reporting Period.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20 September 2016.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The Directors believe the Share Option Scheme
will enable the Group to reward our employees, the Directors and other
selected participants for their contributions to the Group.

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any person belonging
to any of the following classes of participants, who the Board considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group, to
take up options to subscribe for Shares:

(i) any Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and INEDs) and employees of any member of the Group;
and

(i) any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, customers,
suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture business
partners, and service providers of any member of the Group.

The eligibility of any of the above class of participants to the grant of
any option shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on the
basis of the Directors’ opinion as to the participant’s contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the day
on which trading of the Shares commence on the Stock Exchange, such
10% limit represents 74,000,000 Shares, representing 9.2% of the issued
Shares as at the date of this report.
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The total number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of Shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or INEDs or
any of their respective associates (including a discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include a substantial shareholders, INEDs, or any
of their respective associates) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made, upon payment of
HK$1 per option. An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the provisions for
early termination under the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options
to a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the Share Option
Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares on the date of grant; (i) the
average closing price of the Shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is adopted
until 19 September 2026.

No share option of the Company was granted since the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 13 to 31 of this report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company and the laws of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float under the
Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of our Group were entered
into or in existence during the Reporting Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, there were no connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. Details of significant related party transactions
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statement. None of these related party transactions
constitute a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period have been
audited by OOP CPA & Co. (“OOP”) which were appointed as auditors of
the Company since 25 November 2024 upon the resignation of CWK CPA
Limited (“CWK”). CWK have acted as auditors of the Company for the
financial years ended 31 March 2024, 2023 and 2022.

OOP shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it engages. The Group strives to minimise its
impact on the environment by reducing its use of electricity and water and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group has
complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, our Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of our Group during the Reporting
Period.

On behalf of the Board
Century Group International Holdings Limited

Man Wai Lun
Executive Director
27 June 2025
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
CENTURY GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century Group
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 112,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31
March 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements
concerning the adoption of the going concern basis on which the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared. The Group
experienced a loss of HK$1,601,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025
and had net current liabilities and net liabilities both of HK$15,537,000
as at that date. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in
note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. The directors, having considered the
measures being taken by the Group, are of the opinion that the Group
would be able to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

FARETER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, FRBIREFEEARBEZSHHREHNE RAY
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial AHIEMGARERENBAREENEE-
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the ZEEEAZSERERGAUMEBRERDE
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, EERRBETEENEE ZETeR%EE
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate BIRHEEBFBHNER -

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

ARETER

Recognition of contract revenue for construction
contracts

BELHNER W s BT

We identified the recognition of contract revenue for
construction contracts as a key audit matter as they are
quantitatively significant to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and there are significant judgements
exercised by the management of the Group in determining
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation and the amount of contract revenue
recognised.
EERBRESHNNENWNERRBAABERETSE R
ARLELHEENGAUBRIEREXN BRABNE
ERREERABAGHRZCEER EEEEEEE
i 85K B o

As disclosed in note 7 and note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the construction contracts revenue
amounted to HK$15,904,000 for the year ended 31 March
2025. As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised contract revenue by
reference to the progress of satisfying the performance
obligation at the reporting date.

WANsRE BRI 7 R M G20 #E - R ZE -1
FZA=T—HIEFENRES DK 515,904,000/ 7T ©
WIERE M HRERNF4ETE - EEELSERE B EERK
BHEFREREERE LM -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAHBERETSRETER

Our procedures in relation to contract revenue for construction
contracts included:
EEHEBRRESONENRENEFBIE:

o Understanding the design and testing the implementation
of key internal controls over the revenue recognition of
construction contract on a sample basis;
TREZESHWHEREREN T 2N RE
WiEBmHEARERNTER:

o Discussing with the project managers and the
management of the Group to understand the status
of the projects, identifying any variations, provision on
loss making contracts and obtaining explanations for
fluctuations in margins as to their reasonableness;

0 EEEEELEREEE#ETNR NKTHIRE
B ERORR BAER TREE 2 OB ERE AR
RFR B S MG

o Checking the total contract value and terms to agree to
the underlying construction contracts entered into with
the customers and other relevant correspondences and
supporting documents in respect of variation orders; and
RESNBERGETABERT PRI ZNHEBREES
#) LA X2 7 B8 AR B 58 0 L4t A B 1 SRR E R ST M S A
P53

° Checking the revenue recognised and the corresponding
certificates issued before and subsequent to year end
date and other relevant correspondences and supporting
documents in respect of variation orders, on a sample
basis, to evaluate the reasonableness of the revenue
recognised.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

B M % BN

RBEHMET RS BRRARE
HEME

EENER RYUSAMBBREBRS T
FE i 7O HRFF S8R AR 1 8 BN e B K R AR R ER
BRERE YRRHPENZRGERER B
THAHBESFERHZBEN RS - Rt 25
EENHETMEEMAE BEFATHARE
MATEHEMEMATEREE@MEHRET
EREFE-ABREBKENRE TR
RERBEEERTEINETHES EX—F
AN $8 FR RO 7 1 B AR B B 3R - $E SR R T R X
FFREREL WA REHEMENRERE
AR EGAMBRREAEREZSHRAM
BHARELOLERTE - AR BESERERR

it

ERBRERTENETEFNERET &S
EEERFHERERAE RSEXBHERE

T o B
X /A =T :

. BRI M EBEREFFRERMERES
PBRRFEERNERRANAR R
SR RMITEIEFAREZ AR A
RERTRMBEENESER (ERE
EERNER - HRFFATRES RER
BiE EERER ERRAIZEE AR
EEERIR N - B R BE B 3R R R AF T 28
HOBARBEREANER SN REER
PR 5 BR T 28 B0 B K BH AR BR L 1O Lk

TR BT AR O AR ER B - ARRET @
ENEFEF EENLIEY HEEE
MEBZEHIN BRI ERER -

. AAEEEMERAETBRNREERIE
St ARTMAREKENSE M -

o HEESRAKEKEXRBEHERNR
BUHELAR LRBEMERNESER
EHECAFEEEEXBERABN
BEATHEEE MAREHY &5
BB EERBRNELEERRE -
HMESRR/FEERTHEL  BA L
BERBNBETREERAELIER
EMBRERTOABEE-NAEBKE
TR-AETESERER BESEWmIE
REBEEZBENRE R R IEMEGHE
FHREAM  RREHEKBERATEE
¥ BEREEARERKERR-

HLEEEERZERERAR | —E-_AFFH

47



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAMEE

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Kwok Si Ki.

OOP CPA & Co.

Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Si Ki

Practising Certificate Number: P08411

Hong Kong
27 June 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEeEskEtEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

Notes 2025 2024
ihg=2 —EC-RE ZTZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations BB EER
Revenue Wz 7 15,904 47,543
Cost of services AR 7% B AR (19,335) (52,918)
Gross loss Ei8 (3,431) (5,375)
Impairment losses under expected BHEEBEERGERD
credit loss model, net of reversal BEEE B NREE 6 (1,264) (176)
Other income, other gains and losses, net HigA - Htim R EiEFE 8 7,614 3,336
Administrative expenses TERF X (3,739) (4,810)
Finance costs BE KA 9 (781) (507)
Loss before taxation BREiATE 1R (1,601) (7,532)
Income tax credit FrisiE & 10 - -
Loss for the year from continuing operations 548 4% & ¥ 7 F W& 12 12 (1,601) (7,532)
Discontinued operations EARIEEEER
(Loss) profit for the year from ERIEEEEBFA (EE)
discontinued operations 1 11 (5,381)
Loss for the year FAEE (1,601) (12,913)
Other comprehensive expense HEthE2EMAX
ltems that may be reclassified HEggamoBEEan
subsequently to profit or loss: B E
Release of statutory and translation reserves 4 | #E 32 — eI Ft /8 A 5114
upon derecognition of a subsidiary FRBRETE RME H B =
Exchange differences arising on RMEBINEREENEN =5
translation of foreign operations (87)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRE2EMRAZBE (1,636) (13,000)
Loss per share (HK cents) R EsE OBl
From continuing and discontinued operations 5 4& & B % |- & & 215113
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 16 @)
From continuing operations REREEBME
- Basic and diluted —EARREE 16 (1)
HLEEBEBEBRERBERAR | ZE_RFF#H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BB R

As at 31 March 2025
R-ZE-_RAF=A=+—H

Notes 2025 2024
P 5 —E-RF —TZNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FTERT FHET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment BB M 17 176
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 80
256
Current assets RENEE
Trade and other receivables, B 5 Rk H MW GKIE -
deposits and prepayments e RIEFRIA 19 1,502
Contract assets BHEE 20 38,004
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRS 21 2,121
41,627
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERFKIA 22 28,955
Other short-term borrowing EAn R HAE R 23 5,120
Amount due to a director of a subsidiary JE At — FEI B B A B Y
—REENIA 24 15,537
Amount due to a shareholder FEAS — B RRIR 24 3,555
Provisions B 25 2,572
Tax payable FEAT IR 45
51,334 55,784
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (15,537) (14,157)
Net liabilities BEFE (15,537) (13,901)
Capital and reserves EAXREE
Share capital & 7R 27 8,048 8,048
Deficits &5 A (23,585) (21,949
Total equity R (15,537) (18,901)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 112 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 June 2025 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEZEBR

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE
Share Share Merger Statutory  Translation Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

[N R} % E AORE EERE RERE Rt BB @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAR TAT FAR ThR FAR FAR TET

(note a) (note b) (note c)
(Hizta) (FizEb) (MsEe)

AL 1 April 2023 “E-=EmA-A 8048 109951 B 162 63 (118,99) (901)

Loss for the year ﬁmﬁ - - - - - (12,913) (12,913)

Other comprehensive income for the year FRE 2 I - - = = (87) - (87)

Total comprehensive expense for the year FAZER T L - - - - 87) (12,913) (13,000)

Appropriations Vo3 - - - 23 - (23) =
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 \:?:@EH%—H&

“Z-NFMA—-A 8,048 109,951 = 185 (150) (131,935) (13,901)

Loss for the year EWE% - - - - - (1,601) (1,601)

Release of statutory and translation R IR BB AR
reserves upon derecognition of RRET RIAERE
a subsidiary - - - (185) 150 - (35)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FR2EH X LE - - - (185) 150 (1,601) (1,636)

Appropriations

5
2
]
l

At 31 March 2025

R-ZE-_RF=-A=1+—H 109,951

Notes:

Less than HK$1,000.

Under the Company Law (as revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to its shareholders,
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they full
due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the
issued capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation
over the consideration paid for acquiring these subsidiaries.

The statutory reserve represents the amount set aside from the retained
earnings by a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC and is not distributable
as dividend. In accordance with the relevant regulations and its articles
of association, the Company’s subsidiary incorporated in the PRC is
required to allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit according to the PRC
accounting standards and regulations to legal reserves until such reserves
have reached 50% of registered capital. The reserve can only be used for
specific purposes and is not distributable or transferable to loans, advances
and cash dividends.

(133,536)

(15,537)

1,000 7T °

s

REMEHERRE (BRI AX) - AR AR

HERAU DR TFEBRR HEEBREDIRK
BzZB& KARRAGRINBEEEBBIE

PEERHNEE-

aHEEEREEEEAKBOHELRE
BIRAEIEEAREEZEHBERATEX
NREMONERE-

TETE R R R T B R A L A B B 2 R AR
BREMNTHNEFSRE BETAUH @Ef”EH“Q%E
BHEBERERESRZRZMAA " A E
EIHHIﬂZiE’JW%@T/JEB%qJI d‘i’i,ﬁﬂ&
HE D B ELBR DAL 0 T A = D 10%E 5 E
B BEEZSREBEDTMERDS0% © %i#E
ﬁfé—fﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂ*ﬁﬁ BETAOESAHEREE
ARRBAERKE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Impairment losses on contract assets,
net of reversal
Impairment losses on trade receivables,
net of reversal
Written off on other receivables
Written off on trade payables
Written off on other payables
Reversal of provision for onerous contracts
Gain on disposals of plant and equipment
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

REED
BT A R 1B
RIAT B IRETHE:
B HA
BERK
BREERERRE
(FNEREEE)
B 5 RWGRIE R E 8
(FNRREEE)
HL A W B L
B 5 PN TR IE M
H A FE 5 R IE 8
BEANBERR
& B B R ) M e
RE MR EITE
EREEENE

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease in contract assets
Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
Net cash used in operating activities from
discontinued operations

KETEHMARS
BRI BTG 2 8 &5 E)
FTAR € F58

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETBHFARSFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER

Proceeds on disposals of plant and equipment
Interest received

HEmE MR #E P15 HIE
EEEills)

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REZFBDFBREFHE

52 Century Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2025

2025
—F-5E
HK$’000
TR

(1,601)

M
781

1,254

10

(4,060)
(2,572)
(1)
176
80

(5,934)

(1,034)

4,995
(1,125)

(3,098)

(3,098)

2024
—E-MF
HK$'000
TAET

(7,532)

)
507

(1,071)

3,036
7,848
(14,074)

(4,261)

(5,381)

(9,642)

136

138



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= e ~— 1
mEBRERERX
For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=1+—RHILFE

2025 2024
—E_HREF T YEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET

FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEE
Advance from a director of a subsidiary —MEB RN —%
E=F 3,128
Proceeds from other short-term borrowing REEMEEEZDN
P18 3k18 1,844
Repayments of lease liabilities HEHEBE (127)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING METEFMESEESFER
ACTIVITIES 4,845
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRASEEYRDFE
EQUIVALENTS (4,659
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEE RS EHHTE 87)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHARERESEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,867
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAGRASZEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash URTEFRREEY 2,121

HLEEEERZERERAR | —E-_AFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). D’ Legem Group Limited (‘D' Legem”),
a company with limited liability incorporated in Hong Kong, owns
225,330,000 shares of the Company, representing 28% of the total
issued share capital of the Company. D’ Legem is the immediate
and ultimate shareholder of the Company. Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Chow Hon.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands, and the address of the principal place of business
of the Company is Office D, 16/F., Kings Wing Plaza 1, No. 3 On
Kwan Street, Shek Mun, N.T., Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of construction
and site formation services. The trading of liquefied natural gas was
discontinued in the year ended 31 March 2024.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 April 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

2.

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE
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Vot y e Lok il 1=
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TF)
BB ERIE1 MWERBNERD
SRZAERT A =L
BEESTERIE7 HEERELHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to

HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and related amendments to

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the

current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as

current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-

current should be based on rights that are in existence at
the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the classification
should not be affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within 12 months.

clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer
of cash, goods or services, or the entity’'s own equity
instruments to the counterparty. If a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity
instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the
option separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that only
covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only
after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments also specify that
covenants with which an entity must comply after the reporting
date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect the classification of a
liability as current or non-current at the reporting date. However,
if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to
the entity complying with covenants within twelve months after
the reporting period, an entity discloses information that enables
users of financial statements to understand the risk of the liabilities
becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period. This would include information about the covenants, the
carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and circumstances,
if any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying
with the covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has applied
the new accounting policy to the classification of liability as current
or non-current retrospectively. The application of the amendments
in the current year had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied any of the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
accounting period ended 31 March 2025, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?®

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Accounting Standards —
Volume 118

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeablility?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statement*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements,
which sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures in
financial statements, will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. This new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while
carrying forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1, introduces
new requirements to present specified categories and defined
subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation
of information to be disclosed in the financial statements. In
addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8
and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of the new standard
is expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group
is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #&A
ﬁ&

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Going concern assessment

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$1,601,000 during the year ended 31 March 2025 and,
as of 31 March 2025, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities both of HK$15,537,000. These conditions
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, that it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Going concern assessment (Continued)

The directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able
to finance its future financing requirements and working
capital based on the following considerations:

As at 31 March 2025, the Group owed approximately
HK$16.5 million to a director of a subsidiary. The
director of a subsidiary has agreed not to request for
repayment of the amount owed by the Group unless
the Group is in a financial affordable position or in the
reasonable opinion after due and careful consideration
the Group is likely to have a material adverse change
on the business, operations, property or condition.

ii. The loan facility has been renewed with amount of
HK$15,000,000 and extended for 18 months effective
from 31 March 2025.

iii. A substantial portion of the net loss for the year
ended 31 March 2025 is caused by the projects
resulting a loss of approximately HK$3.4 million
incurred in the project for the year to the Group.
The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections in which the level of the demand of
the Group’s services have been considered. The
projection covers a period of 12 months from 31
March 2025. The directors expect the construction
operation to generate profit and cash inflow to the
Group in 2026.

In view of the above, the directors are of the opinion that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next 12
months from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Going concern assessment (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as
to whether the directors will be able to achieve its plan and
measures as described above. Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group’s ability to generate adequate financing and operating
cash flows in the near future.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate the
values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Material Accounting Policy Information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Company: (i) has power over
the investee; (i) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) has the ability
to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiaries.

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025

BE_ZT_AF=-A=+—HIFE

=

3.2

3.3

ma
=
A

MERERBREEREKX
BURER (#)

FEKEXRBTME (&)

BELXME EEREEHENE
B E MERFEEATE
BEURR AR B E T AR KE
ERERERELERSRNENGE
H o

MARBREFSELLEEL
VEETHE BSAKEEEE
BEEMAEETKD S SR8
EENIME - FREAIER
B UKERDEERBED A
EFOBRRRBEERBE &
SERERHENTZELARNEEY
R

EXREFHBEREN
mEE%E

FEMBRREBEARARAR
Atz EBREMBARZ
LR R

ARBRTIERT S E S
B ERENRESR: (B2
B EUREBMEOREE R
B R B sl #E A ¢ (i) B B D AT IR
HENAZEEDE-

WEEERBERER LS = 8Z
HIEEP O —EIA L HRE
B AKEEENNGERTY
KREHSERESE-

MEBARRASBEESZMELR
AIMEGERRARES AR I
R E K E LM E R RS
RELEEAKR - LHEZ RF
MBS H & 2 KB E 2 WA
ERXBASEESENEZA
EEEASEINBHENE R
WSz B AGZAERR
Hit2mEKmERA -

HLEEEERZERERAR | —E-_AFFH

63



64

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company'’s
statement of financial position at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investments.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o The Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HEMEBRXRFEREEREK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL SIFBERER (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information 33 EARSHBXESN (&)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEH k= (F)

(Continued)

o The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial instrument (“HKFRS 9”). In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right
to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #&A
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL 23

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information 3.3
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining services
promised under the contract, that best depicts the Group’s
performance in transferring control of services.

Details of the Group’s performance obligation in contracts
with customers are as follows:

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the construction
contracts is recognised over time when the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced using output method. When the
outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably measured,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy of onerous
contract set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (variation
orders of construction work), the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using
either (a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information

(Continued)
Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in the
year of assessment and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities results in
net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. Provisions for
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when

a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost if the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #&A
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL 23

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information 3.3
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
trade and other receivables and deposits, restricted bank
balances and bank balances and cash) and contract assets
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
—E_RF=A=+—HILLEFE

Bz
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. el BHRGHREERELX
TR ER (ME)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are conducted based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increase in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
—E_RF=A=+—HILLEFE

BE
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HEMEBRXRFEREEREK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BIBERESR (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 EASHBEENR (H)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and (i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument
to have low credit risk when it has an internal and external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the
globally understood definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers an event of default for internal credit
risk management purposes occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

The Group also considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will undergo
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and contract
assets are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when formulating
the grouping:

. Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition of an
investment in equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at fair value through
other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. el BHRGHREERELX

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL SBEESR (#)

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.3 Material Accounting Policy Information 33 EARSHBXESN (&)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
other short-term borrowing, amount due to a director of a
subsidiary and a shareholder, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Going concern and liquidity

As explained in note 3.1, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include
any adjustments that would be required should the Group fail to
continue as a going concern since the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the liquidity of the Group can be maintained in the
coming year after taking into the considerations as detailed in note
3.1. The directors of the Company also believe that the Group will
have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements for the next twelve months from
31 March 2025.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes other short-term borrowing, amount due to a director of a
subsidiary and amount due to a shareholder, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and risks associated thereto. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues and
the issue and repayment of new/existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

EXERER

AEBEEBHEHER UHERAEENE
BURELZRE UWEBBILEBR
BEFERBRERZANEE AR E
M EBBRIREEF B

AEENERNEBREERFHR £
EEAMERER BN —HHEBREN
—REEREMEMN-BBRRFE N
BRREMREEBORARFRHER AR
s (BESBITRARRERE) -

ARABEEEMRIHEHELARB -ER
RO —8n ARAEEHEEE
ARRA R H I R R - IRIBA DA
E=EHBER AEEHBEREITH
BRBETREEN REEHTEHER
BRI

Financial assets at amortised cost

BEHERATEZEREE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

REHEKATEZERMEE

E@T A

SRITEER
2025 2024
Sl T ZEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH&T
3,353
53,167

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, deposits, bank balances, trade and other payables,
other short-term borrowing, amount due to a director of a
subsidiary and amount due to a shareholder. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include credit risk,
interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of the Group
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

TREREEEEREXK

AEENTIECHIARTEES REM
EUWHR e RITET BEHREM
e SRR - E bR B 5K FE Y — Rt
BRAAMN-—BEERAREN —BKRR
RE-ZELMITAFBERSHEENMD
KE-ZEZeMmIAZERRRBERE
ERR-FEREREREE SRR - N
ARBRZERBENBRHAN T X A%
BERETEREEZFRARIAERNK
5 A A B 1 R 0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables, deposits, contract assets and bank
balances.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge the obligations by the counterparties is the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial assets
and other items under ECL model. Information about the Group’s
credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and the
related impairment assessment, if applicable, are summarised as
below:

Trade receivables and contracts assets arising from
contracts with custormers

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers before
deciding whether to submit tender proposals on construction
contracts. These evaluation focuses including but not limited to the
payment history of the customer and its current ability to pay, and
after taking into account information specific to the customer. In
order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures are carried
out to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivable balances and contract assets
based on provision matrix. Details of the quantitative disclosure are
set out below in this note.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has concentration of credit risk
of 100% (2024: 100%) as total trade receivables are due from the
Group’s first five largest customers respectively.

Bank balances
Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties

are reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit agencies.

Century Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2025

6.

TR IE (&)
TREREERERBEE (&)

1= & /2 B 52 R 18 5T A

FERREAREHFIRAEGNEAT
BNERAKREEXMBBENERR -
AEENEERBREIZBANE S RE
W HIE B ANEERRITHE
e

RBMERR NEBERYF T RERET
BEEMEEHAEERZMBERNR
SEERR NiEaPBRRKMIE
HEmRTREENEREE-

AEERBERHUEEEEERHERE
EREMIBRETRAEN G EHELRE
EEERRERE RS FEERRKA R
HERAERNGZER (HER) Bt
T

REEF & KA E 5 IER TR K
A EE

B E TR R T RREA DR
33 EESS LN L
FEMERA (BEETRR)ES 2
XHEERAREXNEN LERE
FRAEZER BEEHIERAR
BT 7 248 PR LARE (R 3 i 9 R A
SRR 17 8 e 51 - AN 3 R T A
RRBARLEERBHEE2ESE
WORIE £ 80 R A MR TR AT
R B A AR T X o

R-_E-_RAE=ZA=+—H AEBZ
EREERRA100% (Z T &
100%) - A AE 5 EWGRIALE S B FE
WEAREERARF -

RiThETF
RITBEENEERRER RRAHT

T RBEBERFREBAEEREEN
RH) B IRTT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the Company
make periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the year
ended 31 March 2025, no impairment loss is recognised for the
remaining other receivables and deposits. (2024: Nil).

The Group's exposure to credit risk

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the
following categories:

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

TR I A (&)
TREAREEAEERBE (&)

EER RN ENL (&)
B i JEW A B R K2

HRNEMEBRFERZES ARAES
REELEHLE BEECRUARAE
WEEREUHEEHMAAEBEIFOMN
BUHERN EHHEMERFBERZS
B R B I E R - AR AR EE
R BVRERER ZEREANEER
2\ B 3 4 R IR A0 - B AR R AR SR 1 21
AEHEEREARRE - RBEE_Z
“HE=ZA=t—HLFE ALEHR
THEMEWRFEARRSEAREESRE
(ZE-mF8) -

A& EFE 2 15 Em R

AEE B A2 5B A R RIER B
TR

Category Description Trade receivables/contract assets Other financial assets
Ehl R EREUNE GHEE Hitt&REE
Low For counterpart where there has been low risk  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 12m ECL
of default and does not have any past-due
accounts
15 FELRRRE R EEMRERIEN FHHHBEERRE-UELREENE 12@REHEEHE
H$F5
Doubtful For counterpart where there has been a Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - not
significant increase in credit risk since initial credit-impaired
recognition through information developed
internally or obtained from external
resources but that are not credit-impaired
5 RBBABEREMIENDERERTR 2PEHCEBE-UELREENE 2HEHEEEE-
ERAREERBBEZEMEYELRE TELREERE
SRENEFA
Default There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
X0 BERBETEECHRERRE PHEBEEEE - BREERE T HEBEEEE -
HREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtoris ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

i 84 BE %tﬂﬁﬁai&/\ﬁﬁ)\yﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁliﬁﬂﬁ
SEVEBRAREBETIENR T 4

MEEHeE

MEEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s
financial assets and other items which are subject to ECL

assessment.

6. THIA(H&)
TREREERERBEE (&)

FERBNBERL (&)
AEEE 5 EmERE (&)

TREMRNEEAETRABEEBER
EHEMEEREMER ZEERR -

2025 2024
—E-FHE —T-ME
External Internal Gross carrying Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount amount
M HBEEIR  ABEETIR 12EAN2EEHRGEER BEREE BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHENATECERMERE
Bank balances 21 Baa3to Aa3 N/A 12m ECL 2,121
RITER Baa3ZAa3 TEA 12EAESEEEE
Trade receivables 19 NA Low (Note) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 1,134
B o RENGIE T & () PHEREEEE (BEERE)
Other receivables 19  NA Low 12m ECL 98
Hit W3R TEm & PEABRSREERSE
3,353
Other item
HiI1E A
Contract assets 20 N/A Low (Note) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 39,138
BREE TEm & (PsE) 2HEREEER (BEER)
39,138
Note: Bt -

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the ECL on these items by using a provision
matrix. For the assessment of lifetime ECL by management, the estimated
loss rates are based on historical credit loss experience and the past due
status of the debtors, adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. £®TA(H)
Financial risk management objectives and SHEREEEEREEK (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) FEERKBREENG (F)
The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continueq) AEFE G EEEE (&
Note: (continued) MiaE: (5)
Gross carrying amount HERMEE
2025 2024
—E-RHF T -NEF
Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
loss rate  receivables assets loss rate receivables assets
THFEE EZRERNE EHEE THEEX BHEWFE BHEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHx T FHT FAT
Low [li 1.32% 1,133 -
Low [li 2.90% - 39,138
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group provided HK$10,000 BHE_ZT-_RAF=A=1+—HILFE +r£E
impairment allowance for trade receivables (2024: reversal of HK$181,000) B E 5 FE WK IE 5T 4810,00008 7T 2 LB B E
and provided HK$1,254,000 impairment allowance for contract assets —ZE —UF: #EE181,0008 TT) KA HE
(2024: HK$357,000). As a result, an impairment losses under expected E 121,254,000 T 2 M EREE (Z =1
credit loss model of HK$1,264,000 (2024: HK$176,000) was recognised in F:357,000/8 L) B RIBHEEEEE
profit or loss during the year. AT 2 RE 181,264,000/ 7T ( T P4 -
176,000/ 7C) ERF AR R -
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been TRINTREBEEERE 5HEKFIBRRL
recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach. S HEHEREBENES-
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
HBEHEER
R (TRHE
EERE)
HK$’'000
FHT
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZBZ=H=ZA=+—H 196
— Reversal of impairment losses —REBERE (181)
As at 31 March 2024 R-EB-mE=ZHA=+—H 15
— Impairment losses recognised —ERRBEEE 10

As at 31 March 2025 R-—ZB-RF=A=+—H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025

B=E
6.

—E-RF=ZA=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)
Note: (continued)

Gross carrying amount (continued)

The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowances that has been
recognised for contract assets under the simplified approach.

TR IE (&)
TREAREEREREE (&)

FERBNBERL (&)

AEE G IFER R (F)
GEIRED

MEREE (&)
TRINFREBEOERANEERRBNER

BEZHE-

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
2HENEE
BE(LEHER
FERE)
HK$'000
FHET

As at 31 March 2023
— Impairment losses recognised

R-ZE-_=F=HA=+—H
—BERBEFSE

777
357

As at 31 March 2024 R==
— Impairment losses recognised

—mE=A=+-8
—EERBEER

1,134
1,254

As at 31 March 2025

R-—ZE-RF=A=+—H

2,388

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
its variable-rate bank balances (see note 21). The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated. It is the Group’s policy to keep its deposits at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
The management of the Group considered that the exposure to
cash flow in interest rate risk in relation to bank balances is minimal
and no sensitivity analysis is presented accordingly.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations so as to
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Based on the business model, the Group relied on a significant
extent on proceeds received from its customers from construction
contracts to finance its operations. As the receipts of proceeds
largely depend on the timing when the relevant certificates of
payments are issued, there is no assurance that proceeds received
from its customers from construction contracts of the Group will
be on time and will be sufficient to meet the Group’s needs. The
Group’s operating plan requires it to raise additional funds from time
to time to finance its ongoing and additional construction projects.
If the Group is unable to raise additional equity or debt financing
in time when it is required, the Group’s operations might need to
be curtailed. The management prepared cash flow forecasts for
the Group’s operations and monitors the forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure the Group has sufficient
financial resources to meet its operational needs and to settle
liabilities when they fall due. The management takes into account
the following considerations in projecting their cash flow forecasts:
(a) estimated cash inflows from its construction and trading
businesses; and (b) facilities extended to the Group from legitimate
financial institutions which are subject to application by the Group.
Having given due considerations on the aforementioned, the
directors of the Company opine that the Group will be able to raise
and maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its operational
needs. However, the current economic conditions continue to
create uncertainty. Any delay or unavailability of any of the above
measures or sources of finance would impact the Group’s liquidity
position. The management will closely monitor the liquidity position
of the Group and would devise alternative measures when required
which include adjusting the construction progress as appropriate,
and obtaining other external financing.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are at floating rates, the undiscounted
amount is derived from the interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

6.

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

TR I A (&)
TREAREEAEERBE (&)

RBETER (&)

REBEBRN REBEERKEE LK
FEEEP B EES QORI FTERIE
REEEBERHEES B NKREAMFEFA
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WERE - ®E NMREAEE S iZEEE
BEPHEEANWERTE R FFFRIE
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e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Weighted
average
interest rate

mEFIFR

At 31 March 2025

Trade and other payables

Amount due to a director of
a subsidiary

Amount due to a shareholder

Other short-term borrowing

R-Z-R%¥=R=t-H
85 R EMENTR

R —RMERRN
—REENE

B — R RRRA

Hhrs R

12.00%

6.

TR IE (&)

TREREERERBEE (&)

REBESER (&)
Total
On demand contractual
or within  undiscounted
one year cash flow
EER BRRER
15 ReREsE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET

Total
contractual
cash flow
column/
carrying
amount
EHRERE
8% /REE
HK$’000
TR

Total
contractual
Total cash flow
Weighted On demand contractual column/
average or within undiscounted carrying
interest rate one year cash flow amount
JEE K3 BHOREE  AHRERE
AT F = 15 R HeReERsE 8% /FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT FHT

At 31 March 2024 RZZE-ME=A=+-H
Trade and other payables 2o RAMERNTIE 28,955 28,955 28,955
Amount due to a director of ER—RNBLRMN 15,537 15,537 15,537

a subsidiary —REERE

Amount due to a shareholder B —BREHE 3,555 3,555 3,555
Other short-term borrowing HiEBER 12.00% 5,120 5,120 5,120
53,167 53,167 53,167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2025 and
2024 recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding carrying amounts
due to short-term maturities.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

6.

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

TR I A (&)
EMIAZAFEE

AAREBEERA HFAUBRERT NS
HRAABRNON - E-_RAER T
FZA-Zt-BHzemEERSRMARE
BA B RS B E B m R AR e
REREERES -

Wi &5 EER
(@) W=
EFEE# A4
2025 2024
—E_RHEF T POFE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FET

Construction and site formation REBNEERUE

services in Hong Kong FERE
— Public sector — A HEES

Timing of revenue recognition

47,543

W 5 7 52 B 1
2025 2024
—E_RE —ZE_UFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET

Over time & B [ 7 2R

-E|!!I 47,543

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The transaction price of construction work excluding
variation order works allocated to the remaining performance
obligations as at 31 March 2025 amounts to approximately
HK$2,000,000 (2024: HK$12,786,000). The Directors
expect that all the remaining performance obligations will be
recognised as revenue over the next year (2024: one year)
from the end of the reporting period.

TEEEFENNKEITE
HNEENXZER

R-ZE-_RAF=A=+—H 'K
BEERSZIREIIN PEREXRE
TRABANEEIRISHER
#4)/42,000,0008 L (ZZF =M
F:12,786,000/ 70) - E =T H
FTERBITRAETBRIREH
RERKR—F(ZEZWF: —
F)ANER AW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

7.

(b)

Segment information

Information reported to the directors of the Group, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is based on the nature of business.

An operating segment regarding the trading of liquefied
natural gas was discontinued in 2024. The information for
the discontinued operations are described in more detail
in note 11. The Group has only one reportable segment
which is construction and site formation. All of the Group’s
revenues are derived from Hong Kong. Therefore, no
geographical segments are presented. No other discrete
financial information is provided other than the Group’s
results and financial position as a whole. Accordingly, only
entity-wide disclosures and major customers are presented.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are
as follows:

7.

Wk o BER (F)
(b) ZEEHR

Customer A ZPA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C EFC
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2025 2024
—E_RE —ENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT TAET
14,518
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, 8.

NET

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

Hal A~ Hfth 5 & B5 18 5F
-

2025 2024

—E_HREF TR YF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHExT FHT

Continuing operations

Bank interest income

Gain on disposals of plant and equipment
Written off on other payables

Reversal of provision for onerous contracts
Others

SEICEET
RITFEHA

HE B KR e U a
H A FE A5 R IR M 85

BRESNBERR
H il

FINANCE COSTS

BB A

2025
—EB-RHF
HK$’000
FET

2024
Y
HK$’000
FET

Continuing operations

Interest on:
— other short-term borrowing
— lease liabilities

SEEEER

AT BEEAEZHNE
—H 52 B

- HEAE

506

507
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

10.

EHRER
2025 2024
—E_RE —EOF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT TFAT

Continuing operations
Current tax
— Hong Kong Profits Tax

BT IA
_%E:/%ﬁ';u?%%%

Income tax credit

PIREEEii%e

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the BVI as there is no income tax imposed in such

jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for both
years as there was no assessable profits generated for the year.

Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

REASHESRRBREIBEEER L
B AEEBEAMNFERENRBE
LBRBEMMAFEHR ARZERERER
W BB FASH

7 A I M B 1S FE R AR N - R0
RAEFEREBNSHIELEE-

FEMRRELAGSBEREMEE
WK B AT ERE RN T -

2025
—E-HE
HK$’000
THET

2024
—EUF
HK$’000
FHT

Loss before taxation

BRELATE 1R

12,013

Tax calculated at the domestic income
tax rate

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

BAMEHERFE 2BR
TAIHBRAXNRBEE
BARVBANRBEE

AERBVEBERNRBEE

2,688

(2,940)

1,152
(800)

Income tax credit for the year

RERMBHER
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. BRIEREER
In 2024, the directors of the Company resolved to discontinue the RIZZEZNF RARARIESHRAKRIER
Group’s trading of liquefied natural gas operation. The loss for the SENBEERECAAREB - BRILE
year from the discontinued trading of liquefied natural gas operation BERIERAREB Z2FRNBEEHRT
is set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated XeofreEmkAEMEEKEROLR
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have FFEEEM LNEFL2INEERILXR
been restated to re-present the trading of liquefied natural gas ARBERIEEEET -
operation as a discontinued operation.
2025 2024
—E-HE —E - UF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHEx FHBT
Written off on other receivables H b & UK IE U SE (9,820)
Written off on trade payables B 5P A M 3
Written off on other payables H b FE A~ FRIE MUSH 4,436
Loss before taxation BRBiATE R (6,381)
Income tax credit FrigfiiE® =
Loss for the year FANEE (5,381)
Cash flows from discontinued operations: ERIEKEEB CREME
2025 2024
—E-RE —EUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Net cash used in operating activities KEFEFMARS TR (5,381)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FRAEE
2025
—E-HF
HK$’000
FHEx
Loss for the year from continuing operations #3488 & 215 7 FE N E 1B
has been arrived at after charging: KBTS SIBRES:
Staff costs BT A
— Salaries, wages, allowances and —He TE - FER
other benefits HEF

— Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  — 3B /K18 7| 51 2 i 7%

Total staff costs (excluding directors’ and BIRABE (TEEESEK
chief executive’s emoluments =T A BREE
(note 13)) (BIzE13))

Auditor’s remuneration G

Depreciation of plant and equipment R EEITE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEAENE
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2024

2 UF
HK$’000
FET

32,106
1,060

33,166

375
375
160



13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

13.

Directors’ and the chief executive (“CE”)’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2025

Executive directors: YiTES:
Mr. Man Wai Lun XEBEE
Mr. Wang Feng (note a) T8 A (fiza)

Independent non-executive directors: B FHTEE:

Mr. Chung Man Lai EXBLE

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria S E Y

Mr. Law Ka Ming Michael BRAXE
Total it

Fees

e
HK$’000
TR

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

EERBETBRAENME

AEERBERLEMRAUEERQRKF
PIEBENEERERTRAR ([&
BITBRABI)WMEWT :

E-_E_HAFE=/B=1+—8H
IEFEE

Salaries,
bonus, Contributions
allowances  to retirement

and other benefits
benefits scheme Total
B WA
R RICER
HibER HE LT w@t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TER

AEEMEEETREEMNLHFREXR
B ] H M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S 13. EERESITHRAEBNHME

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 March 2024

(&)

BE-E-_WFE=A=+—H
IEFE

Salaries,
bonus, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
2R AN
R R
we Higsl R aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET BT FTET
Executive directors: BITEE:
Mr. Man Wai Lun XEBEE - 240 12 252
Mr. Wang Feng (note a) T4 (fka) = = = -
Independent non-executive directors: BY FHTES:
Mr. Chung Man Lai BEXREE 120 - - 120
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria MmER T 120 - - 120
Mr. Law Ka Ming Michael BRALE 120 - - 120
Total M@t 360 240 12 612
Note: B 5E -

(a) resigned on 16 August 2024.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors and the
CE of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the years ended
31 March 2025 and 2024.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.
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(a) RZZEZMFENA+BET-

REE-_T_AFR-_ZT-_NF=A
=+ —HLEFE ANEEWERARF
FREZRESTHRAE X EMBE
YER DA & B sk hn A 7S 5 (B B 1) 22 )
RAE BB (E -

EXHATHTESCHMERMEETER
RERAREEEBARERBE N2
TE-

EXRTRBUFRTES R E
BEARREEBREM N2 S/



14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14. AEEEFMES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, AEEREESTMATES LE (=
none (2024: none) of them was a director of the Company, whose TZMEEIARAES EMESE
emolument is included in the disclosures in note 13 above. The REXHFIHBE - AEBRAZ (ZF
emoluments of the five (2024: five) individuals of the Group were as ZHE-RB)ATZHE0T
follows:
2025 2024
—E_FHE —E_MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R REAMmRET 3,005
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R K1& F 5t &I 7 88
3,093

The number of the highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company, whose
remuneration were within the following bands

VHRARRBDEEZREHNE
%%5&%&%2%%&&?%

Number of employees

EEAE
2025 2024
—E_HEF T YEF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T

____. I

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any five highest paid
individuals including directors of the Company as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group during the years ended 31 March
2025 and 2024.

REBEE_ZE-_AFK_T-_NF=A
=+ —HLEFE AEETERALRAF
haERTMWALT (BEARAIES)
FAER—BXNEAHSIEASBES
MAREBE R MAREE AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of ARARRBE-_ZTE_AF=A=+—H
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025, nor has any LE 5 FE 3 oK () 3 58 A% A% BROR A ok 388 R 1<
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period EMAR S BREHRE N EERTR
(2024: Nil). BB (ZZE_F &) -

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BREE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

DA A I A 18 T R
oI B E

2025 2024
—E-HE ==t 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Loss %]
Loss for the year attributable to owners of NAEERE AELFAEE
the Company (1,601) (12,913)
Less: Ve
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEEEEB 2 FRNERE
operations 5,381
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share R EFERL S EB TR
from continuing operations EREBEZER (1,601) (7,532)
2025 2024
—E-HE —EPUF
’000 ‘000
F AR
Number of shares R ER
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AN ESRENEEZ
for the purpose of basic loss per share I m AR N 19 8L 804,750 804,750

For year ended 31 March 2024, basic loss per share for the
discontinued operations was HK1 cent per share, based on the
loss for the year from the discontinued operations of approximately
HK$5,381,000.

No diluted loss per share were presented as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares in issue for both years ended 31 March
2025 and 2024.
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HE-_Z-_NF=ZA=+—ALFE"
ERIEKEEHR 2 BRELAEBEEARTR
VB DERERELEEB 2FA
E518 495,381,000/ It °

HREEZE-_T-_RAFA-_FT-_NF=A
=t —HIEMEFELELANLEEE
THWBBITEBER R &2 TRE
SEEBE-



17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. BERRZHE
Plant and Furniture and Motor Leasehold
machinery fixtures vehicles improvements Total
BEREE BAREE AE HEHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TER THET TR FAT
COST B

At 1 April 2023 RZE-=FmA—H 10,721 315 8,385 1,234 20,655
Disposals & - (248) (253) = (501)
At 31 March 2024 RZB-_MF=A=+—H 10,721 67 8,132 1,234 20,154
Disposals HE (5,137) - (2,225) = (7,362)

At 31 March 2025

W-Z-RAF=A=1—H

1,234 12,792

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 37 & & i (&

At 1 April 2023 R_E-=FMA—H (10,289) (315) (8,266) (1,234) (20,104)
Provided for the year FRRBE (291) = (84) = (375)
Eliminated on disposals B B 3 8 - 248 253 = 501

At 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=+—H (10,580) 67) (8,097) (1,234) (19,978)
Provided for the year FNAEE (141) - (35) - (176)
Eliminated on disposals P B 4K 6 5,137 = 2,225 = 7,362

At 31 March 2025 RZZ-RAE=R=1+—H (5,584) (67) (5,907) 1,234 12,792

CARRYING VALUES

At 31 March 2025

REE

R-E-AFE=A=+—H

At 31 March 2024

RZE-NE=A=+—H

141

35 S 176
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 17. BERERE (&)
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a LTl EREEEE HETINFEFENUE
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: REERE
Plant and machinery 10%-25% R Mt 25 10%2£25%
Furniture and fixtures 25% RILREE 25%
Motor vehicles 25% B 25%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term or 25%, HERE E I H25%
whichever is shorter (UREEARE)
18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EAKEEE
Leased
Motor properties
vehicle (note i) Total
HEME
RE (B &Fi) st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
As at 31 March 2024 i —pis
—A=+—H
Carrying amount BREE
As at 31 March 2025 i
—A=+—H
Carrying amount BREE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZE —Z — U
—A=+—RALFE
Depreciation charge neEEH

For the year ended 31 March 2025 EHZE_-ZT - H 4
ZA=+—RHItFE
Depreciation charge mEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 18. FFRAREEE (&)
2025 2024
—E-RHE —EUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Expenses relating to a short term lease EHARBHAENHAX 9
Total cash outflow for leases (note ii) MAER R 4% (M) 127
Notes: B 5E
0] The leased property represents office premise. 0] HEMERERAEYE-
(ii) Total cash outflow for leases included the repayment of lease (ii) HERSRLAEREAEREER
liabilities and interest paid. REATFE -
The Group entered lease arrangement for an office premise with AEEEE-—HHRBARMN—REE]
a director of a Group’s subsidiary. The rental fee of the tenancy YA EYMEREL-BE-_F -1
was waived for the year ended 31 March 2025. The waiver will be FZA=+—HIEFEMNHEERADE
reviewed annually. Re -BHHEREBEZTFER -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19. ESZREMERFZE -RER
AND PREPAYMENTS I
2025 2024
—E-REF T POE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Trade receivables from contracts with REBEFPENNE S ERRIE
customers 1,134
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBEREE (19)
1,119
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B 3KIB - #&& R H M fE U718 383
1,502
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 1 April 2023, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to approximately HK$4,054,000.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group does not have a standardised and universal credit
period granted to its customers of construction contracts, and the
credit period of individual customer of construction contracts is
considered on a case-by-case basis and stipulated in the project
contract, as appropriate. In respect of sales of liquefied natural gas,
payment is required to be settled by 30 days from presentation of
sale invoices. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the date of the certified report and invoice
date which approximates revenue recognition date at the end of
the reporting period:

19.

BEEZREMEBURE RER
BNKE (&)

mfjffimﬂ A EBEEFEH
B 5 & WK #94,054,0008 7T °

AEBYERZEEFHEEAMER

O
an °

AEBELRABESHNETFPE TRE
F-WEEH MEESONERNER
MEEHDZEREE AREBEH
FETA (HEE) BRAHERLERA
RABZ2HEEEFEIAAELN
K AT RARBERARBBEZERSE B
HRERAERMBEEZHZERSE
e B 5 e U R IR B R ik 0 AT

2025 2024

—E-FHEF —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FET

0 to 30 days 0-30H 1,134
1,134

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (15)
1,119

No trade receivables balance is past due over 90 days and
considered in default as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
are set out in note 6.
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTRACT ASSETS

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

BREE

Unbilled revenue of construction contracts

BESHARABZ RS

Retention receivables of construction contracts Ek”\ HEBIRE &

B EEERRE

Less: Allowance for credit losses

2025 2024
— ZTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERx T

180 1,764

33,963 37,374
34,143 39,138
(2,388) (1,134)
31,755 38,004

As at 1 April 2023, contract assets amounted to approximately
HK$4,250,000.

The Group typically agrees to one to two years retention period
for 5% to 10% of the contract value. This amount is included in
contract assets until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts.

The contract assets also include the Group’s rights to consideration
for work completed but not yet billed at the year end date. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be recovered
after more than one year is approximately HK$14,607,000 (2024:
HK$18,056,000) all of which relates to retentions.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there is approximately
HK$1,254,000 of provision of ECL on contract assets (2024:
HK$357,000) (see note 6 for details of impairment assessment).

RZFZ=FNA—B ANEENR
4,250,000/ T

AEBERERBERENEI0%HE K
BERE EMFREY AAREEE
BURKRBBNEMNZE R EAFTE
PRETHRNMEREEE&RITAIE
B HUEESHEAAGHNEE BEERE
HERBLLE-

BHEBENBRASEEINERAEH
EEXIBRERBFELEZENREZE
M- AMEERBMNKREGHSEE
B RWR A -

B RBRE—FREBMNENEES
B 49 /514,607,0008 7T (— & — P04 ¢
18,056,000/ 7T) ' FT B & L MR FE
B

BHE-_Z_AFZA=+—BLFE"
AEHEEEHEEBEBEELN1,254,000
B (ZE ZWF:357,00008m) (B
R EF O FERWES) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025

B=E
21.

22,

—E-RF=ZA=+—HIFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates of
approximately 0.01% per annum (2024: 0.01% per annum) during
the year.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

RITEERRAE
RERN ROTBFRBTTBHNROE

F0.01% (ZZFE_HF : HFF0.01% )5
8o

EZRHEMENRE

Trade payables B 5 EA R
Retention payables (note) ERRE® (Pﬁ &)
Accrued expenses and other payables FEET B A & E A B FUE

2025 2024
—E-RF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
11,457

2,267

15,231

28,955

Note: As at 31 March 2025, the amount of the Group’s retention
payables expected to be due after more than twelve months was
approximately HK$2,238,000 (2024: HK$1,300,000).

Trade payables represent payables to suppliers and
subcontractors. The credit terms granted to subcontractors are
stipulated in the relevant contracts and the payables are usually
due for settlement within 60 days. In respect of purchases of
liquefied natural gas, the credit period is 30 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit time-frame. The following is
an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

MeaF: RZZT-_RAE=A=+—HB £&H
B RBE+_@EARINY RN
RB & #/52,238,0000 T (—FE =M
£ 11,300,000/ 7T ) °

B EMNRBERENHEER LD BEK
BH-BRTDBENEERNBRENR
EEENRIERERENCOR AEE -5t
BERLERARMES - EEHAI0H -
AEBECDHEVBKRERERRE B
FARNREREERRABE-LAT
ARBEHRREEXRAMEINNES
FE 1S SR IR ) B . 0 AT

2025 2024
—E-RHE T YF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT

0 to 30 days 0-30H
31 to 60 days 31-60H
61 to 90 days 61-90H
91 to 365 days 91-365H

678
383
153
10,243

11,457
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23.

24,

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

OTHER SHORT-TERM BORROWING 23. HMEHER
2025 2024
—E-HF ZTZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Other short-term borrowing H b 52 HAfE 5,120
As at 31 March 2022, the Group entered into a loan agreement RZBEZZF=A=+—H AEEHA
with a third party to borrow an on demand loan facility amounted —RE=FFIMNERME NEA—E
to HK$25,000,000 which is interest-bearing. All the interests shall 48 % 525,000, OOO/%TEE’J SFREMRF
be repaid every quarter and the principal loan amount shall be TEABNZHENE RERASER
repaid within twelve months from the date of the first drawdown. HARRzBR+Z 1Iﬂ WEE
As at 31 March 2023, the loan facility has been renewed with R-TE-_=F=ZA=+—H EFRE
amount of HK$18,000,000 and extended for 18 months effective 18,000,000 JT B £& #1 I & i Hi181H
from the reporting date. A-BWEHEERER-
As at 31 March 2024, the loan facility has been further renewed RZZE-_NF=ZA=+—H EX@AE
with an amount of HK$15,000,000 and extended for 18 months 15,000,000/ T 2 i — 48 %ﬁIELEﬁ
effective from the reporting date. 1818 A B E HABEN-
As at 31 March 2025, the loan facility has been further renewed R-E-_RAF=A=+—H EFRE
with an amount of HK$15,000,000 and extended for 18 months 15,000,000 7T B, # — 27 & #7402 1E A
effective from the reporting date. 188 A A& HAIBEN-
AMOUNTS DUE TO A DIRECTOR OF A 24, BEN-—EREBLAAN-—RE
=%
SUBSIDIARY/A SHAREHOLDER B/ —ERRNE
The amount due to a director of a subsidiary is non-trade in nature, B —HNBARTM —REZREBIKE
unsecured and interest-free. As at 31 March 2025, the Director has EotE EXREREE R H
agreed not to request for repayment until the Group is in a financial FZA=+—"HB EFRAEBELAEEHH
position to do so. BRAAFEENBERAT A ERE
The amount due to a shareholder is non-trade in nature, BN —2RRRNEBHFEZEE B
unsecured, interest-free and is repayable on demand. B RZEREE-
PROVISIONS 25. 1%

The provision was made for onerous contracts for construction
services in previous years. Under these contracts, the management
of the Group estimates the unavoidable cost of meeting the
obligations will exceed the economic benefits expected to be
derived from the revenue generated by these contracts.

BREDNBEFER/EERBNERNK
/\%’Jﬁﬂ’ﬁtlj $E?J§EZ$ #oAEEE

EBATERITESM A RELDN
EX$H¢ELE‘EE‘7@EEZ$ HIFTEE RO UK
25 AP W R B 4 78 A 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

25. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED) 25. B (&)
These construction contracts have been completed during the RERESHNRBE_T_RF=H
year ended 31 March 2025. The management of the Company 7-1— ALFEERLEK -ADEERE
considers that there is no further obligation to be met. The reversal RAEWEAMGFRERITOEL BB
of provision for onerous contracts was recognised in “Other ERBBREER [ HEamBA - il
income, other gain and losses”. REE] R HER-
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2024 R-ZTE-_WFWM™A—A 2,572
Reversal of provision for onerous contracts EIE M & KB T (2,572)
At 31 March 2025 RZB-_hA¥=H=+—H
26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 26. EEFEES
As at 31 March 2025, a subsidiary of the Group had aggregate RZE-RAF=ZA=+—8 K&
unused tax losses of approximately HK$139,408,000 (2024: —ERB AR KRB R IBEEIERRE
HK$135,696,000) available for offset against future profits. No 47 /139,408,000 L (Z T — Y 7F :
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability 135,696,000/ 7t ) » o] # K 84 & 2K &
of future profit streams. The unused tax losses may be carried Fl o B3 7 AR AR s R O &9 1S BT FEORIME - R
forward indefinitely. BRELEHIEEE - RBAZHIBEEBIE
A AR HAgE 4% o
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BAK
Number of shares Share capital
RIBEE B A

HK$ 000
TER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRAEBOIETZERR
Authorised HE

At the beginning and at the end of REDNRRFR

the year PGV 2,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid BETRAR
At the beginning of the year REA] VNGO 804,750,000

At the end of the year RER 804,750,000 804,750,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group entered into
transaction with a related party as follows:

Related party

R ReHE

28.

Nature of transaction

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

ABALXS

Ms. Choi Chun Chi Sandy
BEZHL

Office rental paid (note)

BEHAERS (M)

(a) Bfe o BB 3R MK A 7 BT
4 - F$¢F AEBITIT
L

2025 2024
—B-EH%E —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Tt Tt

51

The above transaction was conducted at terms determined
on a basis mutually agreed between the Group and the
related party. Ms. Choi is a director of a Group’s subsidiary.

Note:

The related party transactions constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and other
members of key management personnel during the year was
as follows:

LLQ%BE@?$Elﬁ%ﬁ

KR EEEETE N GRNIE
figﬁtﬁ$ElW%An*
FEZF-

o

B

B 5 32 BB EK b 0 R BB 14AE
REHEXHABEMET S
REXHERPET ETRABIA
&Y HERRE -

(b) FEEEANSHZMH

MRAEE KRRAREENTEE
BREEMKE ZFHMHHIOT

SRRl
BERUR A

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of the directors of the Company and key
executives is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of the individuals and
market trends.

2025 2024

—EB-RE ZE-OF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAT

3,245

100

3,345

KAREEREE hﬁAﬁ%m
THEMEZEESE2ZEZSFA

ZERBERMISBAERT -

HLEEEERZERERAR | —E-_AFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025

B=E
29.

—E-RF=ZA=+—HIFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company on 20 September 2016, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) to attract and retain the best
available personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees
(full-time or part-time), directors, consultants or advisors,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent non—
executive directors or any of their respective associates (including a
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include a substantial
shareholders, independent non-executive directors, or any of
their respective associates) in any 12-month period in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within five days inclusive of
the day on which such offer were made, upon payment of HK$1
per option. Options may be exercised at any time during a period
as the directors of the Company may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will be at least
the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing on the date, the adoption date (i.e. 20 September
2016) and shall expire at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by the shareholders in general meeting.

No share options were granted since the adoption of the Scheme
and there are no outstanding share options at the end of the
both the current and the last reporting periods. A summary of the
principal terms and conditions of the Scheme is set out in Appendix
IV to the prospectus of the Company dated 30 September 2016.
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29.

URHBBERZARRS

BEAAFTRERA-_ZE—NFALA-T
ABEBMEEREZR AQRFEM—IE
R E ([ZaT8l])) BE®RS R
BESHEBAE THALEREE (&2
B kR EE - BRALTHEM S
HE el HER KRB BFPB
EBLRREHERNREENMNMEE R
HEAREEEKALES-

ERERDNBREELIAET  BIKZ
BB CBREMY RIRG 2
B TEEBATWRERQREBEITR
D HI10% o FEAREAR QR R Z Lk &
T REM—FRAEFNBEAADRELRA]
R CBRIEMSIRCEBITRET
BII2BROEE  TRBBNEMRERD
AAFEBEITRMD Z1% o MR ER12
EAEMEZRENBLIFRNITES
FAMESENBREA (BE2ERET
THEAN EREREFERE -BIUIEH
NTEERTNESENBREA)RD Y
BREBBARAABKRAZ01%EE
BB 185,000,000/ T - HE LB AR
AIAR R BEE ©

RXNBOHBREIVETR RENE
BEANEHBEEEA TR (BEEE
ER)AZM-BREAIRARAES
F]BE BB E MO B R AR (] B ) T AT
HEHEHM A FBEERE B HEN T+
F-IHEERARAEZET HIE
BERAT&SE: ()ADQA R RERH
HE (& ()i R BRI A8
AR B2 5 B 8 F W E KRR A
B E{E

ZETEIBRERMBE Y (A —F—REN
AZt+BR)EBREFTEHEARNER
BRIFMBRAS LERRREFRIL B
AR BERZAEETBF —E2%R
B & B B A SR T o

BERA & B AR RAR I EER T
I RERHE - ERE AT M £ — AR EHR
I RITEH B - BRI AT 8=
RIEA RGO BRINARR BN
TE-RFANA=THENBRERZM
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
BHE_ZT_RF=A=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 30. EKRBERIGFHE
The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees AEBAREBEENMBEEKREEENE
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from BESFTEl B EEHTFEAZES
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The MESEE BUNAEBEE-A&
Group contributes 5% (2024: 5%) of relevant payroll costs to the BEIiZMEETEKRKARS% (_ T U4
MPF Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by employees 5% ) A& & & fiU ER R AEEE
and subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month. ERESE  HHR FAHK J:FEZ%H ,500
BT o
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the total expense \Ejzi_ T _RF=A=+—RHILF
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and E RixcEmkEMmeE ks xR W
other comprehensive income is approximately HK$465,000 (2024: % wa B X 49 A465,0008 L (=&
HK$1,072,000). Z P4 :1,072,000%7T) °
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 3. RMEETBHELEZEEYHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The tables below detail changes in the Group’s liabilities arising THRFANAKEGHETHEEZAR
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash 2 DERSRIFRCEH -MER
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for PELECZAEREREMNECHARRE
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the EREBNEEHERERIPEARME
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing EBHEERENBE
activities.
Amount
due to Amount Other
a director of due to short-term Lease
a subsidiary a shareholder borrowing liabilities Total
S —
GEPNGEY Eft—%
—{EERE BRRZE HtEHEX HEEHE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHT THT THTT
At 1 April 2023 RZE-_=FMA—H 12,408 3,555 3,276 126 19,365
Financing cash flows RERENE 3,128 - 1,844 (127) 4,845
Non-cash items FREEE
Finance costs recognised ERERBERA - - - 1 1
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 RZ-—Z-lE=A=+—H
R—E-_mFMA—H 15,536 3,555 5,120 - 24,211
Financing cash flows BERERE 1,000 = 1,491 = 2,491
Non-cash items FREEE
Settlement of other payables HEHEMEMNZRE - - 2,301 = 2,301
At 31 March 2025 RZE-_RAF=A=1+—H 16,536 3,555 8,912 - 29,003
HLEEBEBEBRERBERAR | ZE_RFF#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32. AARHMBMRRKFBER
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2025 2024
—E_RE —EZMF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT TFAT
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B RRMEE 47,824
Current assets REBEE
Deposit, prepayment and Be - AR B K& E b FEUREIR
other receivables 144
Bank balances RITHETT 35
179
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to the ultimate FE B AR AR A B RIR
holding company 24 3,555 3,555
Other short-term borrowing H 52 B fE 3K 23 8,912 5,120
Other payables H fib B 3R 2,701 3,358
15,168 12,033
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (14,910) (11,854)
Net assets EEFE 32,914 35,970
Capital and reserves EAXREHE
Share capital & 27 8,048
Reserves 1 (@) 27,922
Total equity MR 35,970
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

(@)

The movement of reserves is shown as follows:

e M ERRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_ZT_RF=A=+—HLFE

AR BRI R FEER (F)

b

(@) .z 2EEIIMT

Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B’ 13 % E Hinf#E B 3 @
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FET FHET FET FET
(note)
(M)
At 1 April 2023 R-E-_=FMA—H 109,951 47,823 (127,468) 30,306
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FAEE R 2HEM X
expense for the year ekl - - (2,384) (2,384)
At 31 March 2024 and KT M4
1 April 2024 =A=+—HRK
—E-UFMNA—AH 109,951 47,823 (129,852) 27,922
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FAEIER2HEM X
expense for the year ekl - - (3,056) (3,056)
At 31 March 2025 i S
=A=+—H 109,951 47,823 (132,908)

Note: Other reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued for the acquisition of C&H
Engineering Company Limited (“C&H") and the contributed
net asset value at the date of acquisition.

MisE: EbFEEERKBETATESR
BRA) ([ TR
MEEMEEREESMERMNE
EFEZER-

HLEEEERZERERAR | —E-_AFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2025
HE_Z-_RAF=A=+—HILLFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. XQAETEMBARZFE
OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March RZE-_RAFR-_FT-_MF=R=+—
2025 and 2024 are as follow: B ARAZEMBARNFBOT :

Percentage of equity interest/
Place of incorporation/ Issued share capital/ voting power attributable

Name of company operation registered capital to the Group Principal activity
AEEREERE/
ARAB TMAY EEHY BERTRA ERER REEADL TEEH
2024
—ZomE
Directly held:
BEREA:
Honestly Luck Limited The British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100%  Investment holding
('BVI")
Honestly Luck Limited EERETES 1ET REERR
((EBEZHS])
D’ Legem Investment Limited The BVI USS$1 100%  Investment holding
SEBREBR AR HERUHE E REER
Indirectly held:
HERE:
C&H Hong Kong HK$10 100%  Provision of Construction and
site formation works
Ft 0 1087T REtRERBTEIR
Gentury Poli Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Investment holding
R EEEERAA £ 10,000/ 7T REER
Zhejiang Baoxin* PRC RMB$10,000,000 100% Trading of liquefied natural gas
MIREERERAT e AR #10,000,0007 BERICAAR
- The English name of the subsidiary is for identification purpose only. * ZHB AR BB BERER -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during both RZEMEFERRZEMEFER -
years and at the end of both years. BMERBAREHTENERES -
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